

[IJLTER] Article Review Request



From IJLTER .ORG <ijlter.org@gmail.com>
To Furtasan Ali Yusuf <fay@binabangsa.ac.id>
Date 2022-06-05 18:35

Furtasan Ali Yusuf:

I believe that you would serve as an excellent reviewer of the manuscript, "Awareness of Co-Teaching among Teachers of Omani Students with Learning Disabilities," which has been submitted to International Journal of Learning, Teaching and Educational Research. The submission's abstract is inserted below, and I hope that you will consider undertaking this important task for us.

Please log into the journal web site by 2022-06-12 to indicate whether you will undertake the review or not, as well as to access the submission and to record your review and recommendation.

The review itself is due 2022-06-19.

Submission URL:

<http://ijlter.org/index.php/ijlter/reviewer/submission/51528?key=66nfyCD9>

Thank you for considering this request.

IJLTER .ORG
ijlter.org@gmail.com

"Awareness of Co-Teaching among Teachers of Omani Students with Learning Disabilities"

Abstract

Collaboration teaching /co-teaching is one of the methods of providing educational services to students with learning disabilities (LDs) in general education classes, and it also reduces educational dispersion as a result of these students joining remedial instruction programs in special education resource room. This descriptive research aimed to identify the awareness level of co-teaching among teachers of Omani students with LDs. A total of 162 Omani female teachers responded on a co-teaching scale. This scale consisted of 28 items distributed into five domains related to the concept of co-teaching, elements of co-teaching, co-teaching model, benefits of co-teaching, and co-teaching requirements. The statistical analysis indicated that the teachers' awareness was as follows: low level in the elements, requirements and models of co-teaching, moderate level of the benefits of co-teaching, and high level of the concept of co-teaching. There were no statistically significant differences in the teachers' awareness attributed to the specialization and teaching experience. The research recommended reconsidering the pre-service and in-service teacher training programs in Oman to align with the philosophy of co-teaching.

International Journal of Learning, Teaching and Educational Research
<http://ijlter.org/index.php/ijlter>

International Journal of Learning, Teaching and Educational Research

| | | | | |
|-----------------------------|--|------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------|
| HOME | ABOUT | USER HOME | SEARCH | CURRENT |
| ARCHIVES | ANNOUNCEMENTS | EDITORIAL BOARD | | SUBMIT A |
| PAPER | ETHICS & MALPRACTICE STATEMENT | | CORRECTIONS AND | |
| RETRACTIONS | INDEXING | ##PAPER TEMPLATE## | | |


Home > User > Reviewer > #5582 > **Review**

#5582 Review

Submission To Be Reviewed

| | |
|-----------------|--|
| Title | Awareness of Co-Teaching Administration among Teachers of Resource Room Program |
| Journal Section | Articles |
| Abstract | <p>Collaborative teaching (co-teaching) is a method of providing educational services to students with learning disabilities (LDs) in general education classes, and it also reduces educational dispersion as a result of these students joining remedial instruction in special education programs. This descriptive research aimed to identify the level of awareness of co-teaching among teachers of resource room program (RRP). A total of 162 Omani teachers of RRP responded on a co-teaching scale. This scale consisted of 28 items distributed into five domains related to the concept of co-teaching, as well as co-teaching models, in addition to the elements, benefits and requirements of co-teaching. The results indicated that, according to the means and standard deviations of the scale domains, the teachers' awareness of co-teaching was as follows: a low level of awareness of the elements, requirements and models of co-teaching, a moderate one of the benefits of co-teaching, and a high one of the concept of co-teaching. The outcomes of the t-test also showed that there were no statistically significant differences in the teachers' awareness attributed to their specialization and teaching experience. This research recommended reconsidering the pre-service and in-service teacher training programs in Oman to align with the philosophy of co-teaching and raising awareness of it among Omani teachers and educational leaders.</p> |

<https://doi.org/10.26803/ijlter.21.7.8>

| | |
|---------------------|---|
| Submission Editor | IJLTER .ORG  |
| Submission Metadata | VIEW METADATA |

KEYWORDS

[COVID-19](#)
[COVID-19](#)
[pandemic](#) [STEM](#)
[academic](#)
[achievement](#)
[academic](#)
[performance](#)
[assessment](#)
[challenges](#) [e-](#)
[learning](#)
[education](#)
[higher](#)
[education](#)
[education](#)
[learning](#)
[mathematics](#)
[motivation](#)
[online learning](#)
[pandemic](#) [pre-](#)
[service](#) [teachers](#)
[professional](#)
[development](#) [self-](#)
[efficacy](#) [teacher](#)
[education](#)
[teachers](#)
[teaching](#) [and](#)
[learning](#)

USER

You are logged in as...

fav


- [My Profile](#)
- [Log Out](#)

Review Schedule

| | |
|------------------|------------|
| Editor's Request | 2022-06-05 |
| Your Response | 2022-06-05 |

Review 2022-06-12
Submitted
Review Due 2022-06-19

Review Steps

1. Notify the submission's editor as to whether you will undertake the review.
Response Accepted
 2. If you are going to do the review, consult Reviewer Guidelines below.
 3. Click on file names to download and review (on screen or by printing) the files associated with this submission.
Submission [5582-19382-2-RV.DOCX](#) 2022-05-09
Manuscript
Supplementary None
File(s)
 4. Click on icon to fill in the review form.
Review Form 
 5. In addition, you can upload files for the editor and/or author to consult.
Uploaded files [5582-19924-1-RV.DOCX](#) 2022-06-12
 6. Select a recommendation and submit the review to complete the process. You must enter a review or upload a file before selecting a recommendation.
Recommendation **Revisions Required** 2022-06-12
-

Reviewer Guidelines

The International Journal of Learning, Teaching and Educational Research values the role of reviewers in the peer-review process that enables us to publish high-quality materials in a timely way.

Reviewers are expected to accept for review only articles in which they have sufficient expertise. Any conflict of interest must be reported to the Chief Editor.

Reviewers should submit their reviews using the online form provided on the portal. They are expected to provide a clear recommendation and justifications for their recommendation for either acceptance or rejection of an article.

Reviewers should appreciate that they are a privileged group of persons who are having first-hand access to unpublished work and they should therefore maintain the confidentiality of all such works to which they are given access.

Reviewers must analyse the methodology and results and discuss whether these could be repeated.

Reviewers must identify gaps that could or should be addressed in order to provide better understanding of the results.

Reviewers should provide comments on how the article can be enhanced in terms of focus, style and length.

Reviewers must check whether the references are relevant, recent and in the proper format.

Reviewers must comment on the overall originality of the work and its contribution to the field.

Reviewers will be expected to re-review articles which are submitted again after substantial improvements.

Awareness of Co-Teaching among Teachers of Omani Students with Learning Disabilities

Abstract. Collaboration teaching /co-teaching is one of the methods of providing educational services to students with learning disabilities (LDs) in general education classes, and it also reduces educational dispersion as a result of these students joining remedial instruction programs in special education resource room. This descriptive research aimed to identify the awareness level of co-teaching among teachers of Omani students with LDs. A total of 162 Omani female teachers responded on a co-teaching scale. This scale consisted of 28 items distributed into five domains related to the concept of co-teaching, elements of co-teaching, co-teaching model, benefits of co-teaching, and co-teaching requirements. The statistical analysis indicated that the teachers' awareness was as follows: low level in the elements, requirements and models of co-teaching, moderate level of the benefits of co-teaching, and high level of the concept of co-teaching. There were no statistically significant differences in the teachers' awareness attributed to the specialization and teaching experience. The research recommended reconsidering the pre-service and in-service teacher training programs in Oman to align with the philosophy of co-teaching.

Keywords: awareness, co-teaching, Oman, teachers of students with LDs

1. Introduction

Collaboration teaching/co-teaching is one of the educational strategies that seek to achieve inclusive education for students with LDs. The co-teaching is based on collaboration between general and special education teachers (GSETs) in teaching students with LDs. Therefore, the purpose of co-teaching is to provide an opportunity for students with LDs to access general education curricula and benefit from instruction strategies that enhance their learning in the general education classes (Friend,2008). The GSETs participate together to teach the general curriculum for students with and without special needs (Brown, 2013), it is a type of collaboration between two or more teachers who share their intellectual and professional experience to create an educational environment that contributes to academic achievement of students with special needs in general education classes (Hentz, 2017; Diana, 2014). Therefore, co-teaching achieves integration between teachers' experiences and makes students' participation in the educational process more effective. Individual remedial instruction by special education teachers may not be a guarantee of adequate instruction for students with disabilities (Weiss et al., 2020).

The co-teaching is commonly used in general education schools in the United States of America because it meets the educational, social and psychological needs of students with special needs in inclusive education classes (Randolph, 2017), it also contributes to the formation of the teacher's balanced personality through

©Authors

This work is licensed under a Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial-NoDerivatives 4.0 International License (CC BY-NC-ND 4.0).

Commented [u1]: Turn it into a summary in one solid sentence

Commented [u2]: The types of research methods, data collection techniques and sampling techniques have not been explained

Commented [u3]: Separated by ; not ,

Commented [u4]: No acronyms in keywords
Not more than 3 words in one keyword

knowledge of the strengths and weaknesses that appear to him/her during the implementation of co-teaching (Murawski & Spencer, 2011), it also promotes positive interaction between GSETs by sharing responsibility in classroom management (DelliCarpini, 2009). Co-teaching may be more effective than the conventional teaching methods used in teaching students with LDs in the Omani resource room. The co-teaching improves academic achievement, thinking skills, motivation and active learning among students with LDs (Le et al., 2018), it includes group activities based on the mutual positive interaction between students, as well as giving them a spirit of collaboration to reach answers to teachers' questions (Wang & Hwang, 2012).

The Constructivist Learning Theory advocated the integration of educational practices between teachers (Shah, 2019). Based on this theory, co-teaching facilitates the cross-fertilization of ideas and develops teaching strategies for teachers that benefit students with LDs. Accordingly, social interaction between teachers and their participation together in preparing the classroom environment gives students opportunities for oral and written communication and contributes to their cognitive development (Hurst et al., 2013). On the other hand, Conversation Theory emphasized the dialogue method to construct human knowledge among students (Pangaro, 2017). Co-teaching may become a pillar in teaching Omani students with LDs in inclusive education environments because it is linked to the elements of the learning-teaching process. Therefore, GSETs are required to use contemporary teaching methods such as co-teaching to improve the academic skills of students with LDs (Bani Abdel Rahman & Al-Zoubi, 2017). Teachers also encourage the teaching of students with LDs in inclusive education settings by using co-teaching rather than in a resource room program (Strogilos et al., 2016). Pre- and in-service teacher training programs play a role in facilitating the implementation of co-teaching in inclusive education settings (Pancsofar & Petroff, 2016; Pancsofar & Petroff, 2013). In this regard, pre-service special education teachers have expressed a lack of co-teaching content while general education teachers need more training on its implementation (Shin et al., 2016).

The effectiveness of co-teaching depends on the role of teachers of students with LDs in raising awareness among the administrative and educational staff in inclusive education environments. Thus, the teacher contributes to enhancing the learning of students with special needs in inclusive education environments (Nwosu et al., 2020). The contemporary trends demand that the special education teacher be a consultant for general education teachers (Abdallah et al., 2021). Thus, the most effective teachers are those who demonstrate collaborative relationships with the school administration, teachers, and parents of students with LDs. There are positive advantages of co-teaching, but on the other hand, there are problems that reduce its use, such as teachers' resistance to the idea of co-teaching and their refusal to share another teacher with them in the classroom, the academic performance gap between students with and without LDs, and the weakness of technical and administrative support provided by the school principal (Abidin et al., 2012). In addition, teachers have insufficient information about co-teaching lack of opportunities for professional development, and lack of co-planning time (Alnasser, 2020; Mulholland & O'Connor, 2016).

Commented [u5]: It is necessary to add an explanation regarding the novelty of this research because several previous studies have been described above, then what is the difference between this study and the research described above?

Co-teaching includes three elements related to co-planning, co-instruction, and co-assessing (Brendle et al., 2017). In the co-planning, the GSETs plan teaching methods, materials, and assessment methods, in the co-instruction, they implement one of the co-teaching models, while in co-assessing, they evaluate the performance of students with and without LDs, and the co-teaching model used with these students (Sileo, 2011). On the other hand, co-teaching includes six models that can be used with students with and without LDs in inclusive education environments. These six models are as follows (Hentz, 2017; Murawski & Lochner, 2017; Stein, 2016):

1. One teach, one observe: One teacher teaches, while the other observes the teacher's performance and the students' social, behavioral and academic aspects.
2. One teach, one assist: One teacher teaches the course content, while the other teacher roams among the students to provide support or answer their questions.
3. Team teaching: GSET are in the classroom at the same time and take turns teaching and giving instructions to all students.
4. Alternative teaching: One teacher teaches a large group of students, while the other teacher teaches a small group of students in the same class. The small group teacher provides remedial instruction for students with LDs or enrichment activities for gifted students.
5. Station teaching: The teachers divide the students into three groups or teaching stations and the students move between these stations. The two teachers at each station teach students the same lesson in different ways.
6. Parallel teaching: The class is divided into two equal groups of students, and the two teachers teach the same lesson to both groups.

The problem of the current research comes in response to international laws and trends that require inclusive education for students with LDs. The No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB) emphasized that students with special needs have access to high-quality instruction by providing teaching strategies that meet their educational needs in inclusive environments (Guerra, 2015), on the other hand, the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) recommends teaching students with special needs in least restrictive environments (Friend et al., 2010). The research problem also came in response to the results and recommendations of previous studies. Pancsofar and Pettruf (2013) indicated that teachers who receive training services on co-teaching were more confident and positive in their co-teaching practices than teachers who did not receive this training. Brown (2013) emphasized the need to train teachers in the area of content and planning for co-teaching. While, Aba Hussein and Al-Hussein (2016), and Simon (2017) indicated the lack of in-service training programs for special education teachers on co-teaching. Whereas, Baqabed (2018) stressed the holding of training workshops to improve the knowledge of teachers of students with LDs about co-teaching. In this regard, Al-Khatri et al., (2020) confirmed the effectiveness of training programs on improving the attitudes of teachers of students with LDs toward co-teaching. Shaffer and Brown (2015) confirmed that GSETs have positive attitudes toward co-teaching. In other words, the aim of this research is to identify the

awareness of co-teaching among teachers of students with LDs by answering the following questions:

1. What is the teachers' awareness level of co-teaching?
2. Does the teachers' awareness level of co-teaching differ according to specialization?
3. Does the teachers' awareness level of co-teaching differ according to teaching experience?

2. Methods

The survey descriptive research was used to determine the teachers' awareness level of co-teaching. e-scale was distributed to all Omani basic education teachers who teach students with LDs in the resource room program.

3. Participants

The research population consisted of 649 teachers from various Omani governorates. These teachers teach students with LDs in the resource room program attached in the Omani basic education schools. A scale was distributed to all these teachers. By convenience sampling method, 162 female teachers responded to the scale. Therefore, the percentage of participants reached 25% of the research population. Table 1 includes demographic data of the participants.

Table1: Demographic data

| Variable | Category | N | % |
|---------------------|-------------------|----|----|
| Specialization | Arabic Language | 93 | 57 |
| | Mathematics | 69 | 43 |
| Teaching Experience | 10 years or less | 74 | 46 |
| | 11 years and over | 88 | 54 |

4. Data Collection

After reviewing the theoretical literature, the first draft of co-teaching scale consisted of 34 items was developed. To check the psychometric characteristics of the scale; It was reviewed by five faculty members at the Department of Psychology, Sultan Qaboos University. Thus, the final draft of the scale consisted of 28 items. These items were distributed into five domains related to the concept of co-teaching (6 items), elements of co-teaching (5 items), co-teaching models (6 items), benefits of co-teaching (5 items), and co-teaching requirements (6 items). Furthermore, each item of the scale is responded on a 5-point Likert Scale from strongly agree (5) to strongly disagree (1). The final draft of the questionnaire was conducted on a pilot study of 30 teachers. The reliability coefficient according to Cronbach's Alpha for each domain was as follows: the concept of co-teaching (0.83), elements of co-teaching (0.81), co-teaching models (0.86), the benefit of co-teaching (0.83), and co-teaching requirements (0.85). In order to analyze the results, the mean was classified into three levels: low (1:00 to 2.33), moderate (2.34 to 3.67), and high (3.68 to 5:00).

5. Results

Commented [u6]: The research procedures and data analysis techniques for this study have not been explained

Commented [u7]: Explain the research sampling technique, please.

Describe in detail the types of methods and approaches used in this research, please.

Commented [u8]: This participatory part should be included in the method part, not a new sub-title, so it is necessary to distinguish the naming of the title "methods" with participant. Pay attention to the guidelines for writing sub-titles in the IJLTER article.

Commented [u9]: Name and explain in detail how many data collection techniques were used

Commented [u10]: Can this section be made a table?

Commented [u11]: If this type of research is a qualitative research type, shouldn't there be data that can be described, such as the results of observations and interviews? Why does the researcher only describe the table data from the t-test calculation results?

There is a research method bias here. Is this research a mixed method type? Qualitative or Quantitative?

5.1. Results related to the first question: What is the teachers' awareness level of co-teaching? To answer this question, means and standard deviations were calculated as shown in Table 2.

Table 2: Means and standard deviations according to the questionnaire domains

| Domain | Mean | S.D | Level |
|--------------------------|------|------|----------|
| Concept of co-teaching | 2.35 | .594 | High |
| Co-teaching benefits | 2.22 | .308 | Moderate |
| Co-teaching models | 1.63 | .319 | Low |
| Co-teaching elements | 1.61 | .239 | Low |
| Co-teaching requirements | 1.45 | .275 | Low |

Table 2 indicates that teachers have a high level of awareness of the concept of co-teaching, a moderate level of its benefits, and a low level of co-teaching models, elements and requirements.

5.2. Results related to the second question: Does the teachers' awareness level of co-teaching differ according to specialization? To answer this question, means, standard deviations and t-test were shown in Table 3.

Table 3: T-test results according to specialization

| Domains | Qualification | M | SD | t | p |
|--------------------------|-----------------|------|------|------|------|
| Concept of co-teaching | Arabic Language | 2.38 | .607 | 1.02 | .306 |
| | Mathematics | 2.28 | .567 | | |
| Co-teaching benefits | Arabic Language | 2.22 | .331 | .027 | .978 |
| | Mathematics | 2.22 | .257 | | |
| Co-teaching models | Arabic Language | 1.63 | .229 | 1.41 | .158 |
| | Mathematics | 1.57 | .255 | | |
| Co-teaching elements | Arabic Language | 1.42 | .249 | 1.91 | .058 |
| | Mathematics | 1.50 | .317 | | |
| Co-teaching requirements | Arabic Language | 1.64 | .344 | .775 | .440 |
| | Mathematics | 1.60 | .261 | | |

Table 3 shows that there were no statistically significant differences in the teachers' awareness level of co-teaching attributed to their specialization.

Commented [u12]: The author has not described the research table data presented.

5.3. Results related to the third question: Does the teachers' awareness level of co-teaching differ according to teaching experience?? To answer this question, means, standard deviations and t-test were shown in Table 4.

Table 4: T-test results according to teaching experience

| Domains | Teaching Experience | M | SD | t | p |
|------------------------|---------------------|------|------|------|------|
| Concept of co-teaching | 10 years or less | 2.39 | .592 | .785 | .434 |
| | 11 years and over | 2.31 | .597 | | |
| Co-teaching benefits | 10 years or less | 2.21 | .316 | .591 | .555 |

| | | | | | |
|--------------------------|-------------------|------|------|------|------|
| | 11 years and over | 2.24 | .303 | | |
| Co-teaching models | 10 years or less | 1.61 | .247 | .294 | .769 |
| | 11 years and over | 1.62 | .233 | | |
| Co-teaching elements | 10 years or less | 1.48 | .292 | 1.52 | .129 |
| | 11 years and over | 1.42 | .258 | | |
| Co-teaching requirements | 10 years or less | 1.63 | .325 | .044 | .965 |
| | 11 years and over | 1.63 | .316 | | |

Table 4 shows that there were no statistically significant differences in the teachers' awareness level of co-teaching attributed to their teaching experience.

Commented [u13]: The author has not described the research table data presented.

6. Discussion

The results of the first question showed that teachers of students with LDs have a low awareness level of the elements, models and requirements of co-teaching, a moderate of its benefits, and a high of its concept. The teachers' low awareness of the elements, models and requirements of co-teaching can be justified by the fact that it is not implemented in Omani general education schools. The mainstreaming (resource room program) is the current educational system in Omani basic education schools. Therefore, the implementation of co-teaching in inclusive education environments requires the issuance of legislation and laws that encourage teaching students with LDs with their peers in the general classroom environment and throughout the school day. In this regard, the NCLB stressed that students with special needs receive a high-quality education in the least restrictive environments through the use of strategies that meet their educational needs (Scott, 2016). While, the IDEA emphasized teaching students with special needs the general curriculum in general education classes (Compton et al., 2015; Simonvski, 2015).

Since mainstreaming is the educational alternative applicable in Omani schools, it is obvious that the awareness level of teachers is low in the elements, models and requirements of co-teaching. The implementation of co-teaching requires knowledge of co-planning so that the teacher of Arabic or mathematics participates with the teacher of students with LDs in lesson planning. It also requires co-instruction between GSETs through the implementation of a co-teaching model, in addition to the active participation of GSETs in classroom management and co-assessing students' performance. In this regard, Indelicato (2014) asserted that GSETs don't know the concept and models of co-teaching. On the level of Arab Gulf states, Baqabed (2018) confirmed that the knowledge of teachers of students with LDs about co-teaching models is still average. Aba Hussein and Al-Hussein (2016) showed that teachers of students with LDs face problems in implementing co-teaching in general education classes. Aldabas and Alhossein (2019) stressed that the readiness of GSETs for using co-teaching in inclusive schools is still average. Almajed and Albash (2018) recommended reconsidering the pre-service and in-service teacher education programs to comply with the requirements of co-teaching in inclusive education environments.

Therefore, it is necessary to reconsider the pre-service and in-service preparation programs for Omani GSETs. Training programs in the Sultanate of Oman must highlight the models and elements of co-teaching. The Omani special education teacher needs to have an in-depth knowledge of general education curricula, while the Omani general education teacher needs to have knowledge of the categories and characteristics of students with special needs. Thus, training programs may contribute to providing Omani GSETs with theoretical and practical knowledge about the requirements of co-teaching and spreading collaboration among each other. Al-Zoubi and Bani Abdel Rahman (2016) indicated that the weakness of teachers in implementing teaching strategies is one of the challenges of inclusive education for students with LDs. Chitiyo and Brinda (2018) stressed that the lack of training and workshop reduced teachers' preparedness to use co-teaching.

The results showed that the teachers of students with LDs have a moderate awareness of the benefits of co-teaching. This result can be justified by the fact that these teachers have only theoretical knowledge and no practical knowledge of the benefits of implementing co-teaching in inclusive education environments. Consequently, these teachers need to have applied knowledge of implementing co-teaching in general education classrooms. In addition, the positive social, psychological and behavioral benefits of applying it to students with LDs. The presence of students with LDs with their peers in the general class throughout the school day contributes to reducing the social stigma of students with LDs. In this regard, Packard et al, (2011) emphasized the benefits of co-teaching in reducing social stigma and improving the mental health of students with LDs as a result of their studying the general curriculum. Meanwhile, Dasilva (2011) showed the positive impact of co-teaching on social and academic skills on students with and without LDs because it encouraged them to dialogue and collaboration. On the other hand, co-teaching contributed to improving the reading and writing skills of students with special needs and gave them access to general education curricula (Wilson & Michaels, 2007).

Co-teaching also helped improve positive interactions and classroom activities among students with disabilities in classrooms that applied co-teaching (Strogilos & Avramidis, 2016). Therefore, awareness of the benefits of co-teaching must be raised among teachers of students with LDs. Thus, professional development programs and collaborative relationships between GSET help facilitate the implementation of co-teaching (Aljabr et al., 2019).

The results showed that the teachers of students with LDs have a high awareness of the concept of co-teaching. This result can be justified by the efforts of the Omani Ministry of Education to achieve inclusive education and keep pace with contemporary international trends in teaching students with LDs in general education classes throughout the school day. The Omani legislation that came in response to international laws also contributed to raising teachers' awareness of the concept of co-teaching. Also, the desire of Omani teachers to know the contemporary teaching methods used in teaching students with LDs in the world cannot be ignored. In other words, the internet and social media have contributed

to improving teachers' awareness of co-teaching and have formed a conceptual framework towards it.

The results of the second and third questions showed that there were no statistically significant differences in the teachers' awareness level of co-teaching attributed to the specialization and teaching experience. Accordingly, awareness of co-teaching was not affected by the specialization and teaching experience of teachers of students with LDs. This result can be justified by the fact that the idea of co-teaching is not implemented and that mainstreaming education is the current practice in Omani general education schools. Therefore, it is normal that co-teaching is not affected by specialization and teaching experience.

Commented [u14]: There is no theory or expert opinion at all in this discussion.

7. Conclusion

The results of the current research showed that there was a difference in the awareness level of the concept, models, benefits and requirements of co-teaching among teachers of students with LDs. In-service training programs may contribute to improving knowledge, awareness and implementation of co-teaching by GSETs. It is recommended to conduct a research on the attitudes of Omani general education teachers towards co-teaching. Finally, the selection of participants through convenience sampling may reduce the generalization of the results to all teachers of students with LDs in the governorate of the Sultanate of Oman.

Commented [u15]: Briefly explain the difference here

Commented [u16]: Also explain the implications of the research, the limitations of the research and suggestions for parties related to the topic of the article

7. References

- Aba Hussein, W., & Al-Hussein, R. (2016). Extent of applying co-teaching by learning disabilities teachers. *Journal of Special Education and Rehabilitation*, 3 (12), 165-200.
- Abdallah, R., Abdat, R., & Hill, C. (2021). Extent of implementing the characteristics of professional learning communities at the UAE special education centers. *International Journal of Learning, Teaching and Educational Research*, 20(4), 265–283. <https://doi.org/10.26803/ijlter.20.4.14>
- Abidin, M., Mohammadi, M., & Alzwari, H. (2012). EFL students' attitudes towards learning English language: The case of Libyan Secondary School Students. *Asian Social Science*, 8 (2), 119–134. <https://doi.org/10.5539/ass.v8n2p119>
- Aldabas, R., & Alhossein, A. (2019). Teachers' readiness and training needs for using co-teaching in inclusive schools. *Journal of Educational & Psychological Sciences*, 20(3), 439-469. <https://doi.org/10.12785/JEPS/200313>
- Aljabr, E., Aljumaie, W., Alzahrani, H., & alkhudair, A. (2019). The perceptions of female teachers of deaf student about the application of co teaching. *Journal of Special Education and Rehabilitation*, 9(30), 169-198. <https://doi.org/10.12816/0053362>
- Al-Khatri, T., Al-Zoubi, S., & Abu Shindi, Y. (2020). The effect of a training program on the attitudes of teachers of students with learning disabilities towards co-teaching. *International Journal for Research in Education*, 44(3), 13-40. <https://doi.org/10.36771/ijre.44.3.20-pp12-40>
- Almajed, F., & Albash, N. (2018). Co-teaching between general and special education teachers in full inclusive schools: A review of the literature. *Journal of Special Education and Rehabilitation*, 6(24), 1-30. <https://doi.org/10.12816/0051252>
- Alnasser, Y. (2020). The perspectives of Colorado general and special education teachers on the barriers to co-teaching in the inclusive elementary school classroom. *Education* 3-13, 49(6), 716-729. <https://doi.org/10.1080/03004279.2020.1776363>

Commented [u17]: Why is this reference marked in red?

- Al-Zoubi, S., & Bani Abdel Rahman, M. (2016). Mainstreaming in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia: Obstacles facing learning disabilities resource room. *Journal of Studies in Education*, 6(1), 37-55. <https://doi.org/10.5296/ISE.V6I1.8800>
- Bani Abdel Rahman, M., & Al-Zoubi, S. (2017). Effects of classwide peer tutoring on word attack skills among students with learning disabilities. *European Journal of Special Education Research*, 2(5), 88-100. <https://doi.org/10.5281/zenodo.838262>
- Baqabed, H. (2018). The extent of co-teaching strategy: A view of point of teachers of learning disabilities in the primary stage in the Jeddah area and the constraints of their use. *Saudi Journal of Special Education*, (7), 137-167.
- Brendle, J., Lock, R., & Piazza, K. (2017). A study of co-teaching identifying effective implementation strategies. *International Journal of Special Education*, 32(3), 538-550. <http://www.internationalsped.com/ijse/issue/view/22/19>
- Brown, A. (2013). *A survey of professional development for co-teaching?* [PhD thesis, Southern Illinois University Carbondale].
- Chitiyo, J., & Brinda, W. (2018). Teacher preparedness in the use of coteaching in inclusive classrooms. *Support for Learning*, 33(1), 38-51. <https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-9604.12190>
- Compton, M., Appenzeller, M., Kemmerly, M., & Gardiner-Walsh, S. (2015). Itinerant teachers' perspectives of using collaborative practices in serving students who are deaf or hard of hearing. *American Annals of the Deaf*, 160(3), 255-272. <https://doi.org/10.1353/aad.2015.0023>
- DaSilva, C. (2011). *The influence of co-teaching on the academic achievement of special education students* [Master thesis, Caldwell College].
- DelliCarpini, M. (2009). Dialogues across disciplines: Preparing English - as -a second-language teacher for interdisciplinary collaboration. *Current Issues in Education*, 11(2), 1-17. <https://cie.asu.edu/ojs/index.php/cieatasu/article/view/1573>
- Diana, T. (2014). Co-Teaching: Enhancing the student teaching experience. *Kappa Delta Pi Record*, 50 (2), 76-80. <https://doi.org/10.1080/00228958.2014.900849>
- Friend, M. (2008). *Co-teach! A manual for Creating and Sustaining Classroom Partnerships in Inclusive Schools*. Marilyn Friend, Inc.
- Friend, M., Cook, L., Hurley-Chamberlain, D., & Shamberger, C. (2010). Co-teaching: An illustration of the complexity of collaboration in special education. *Journal of Educational & Psychological Consultation*, 20(1), 9-27. <https://doi.org/10.1080/10474410903535380>
- Guerra, L. (2015). *The effects of cross-age tutoring on reading fluency* [Master thesis, California State University].
- Hentz, S. (2017). *Co-Teaching Essentials*. ASCD.
- Hurst, B., Wallace, R., & Nixon, S. (2013). The impact of social interaction on student learning. *Reading Horizons*, 52 (4), 375-398. https://scholarworks.wmich.edu/reading_horizons/vol52/iss4/5
- Indelicato, J. (2014). *How to Build an Effective Co-Teaching Relationship between Teachers* [Master thesis, Dominican University of California].
- Le, H., Janssen, J., & Wubbels, T. (2018). Collaborative learning practices: teacher and student perceived obstacles to effective student collaboration, *Cambridge Journal of Education*, 48(1), 103-122. <https://doi.org/10.1080/0305764X.2016.1259389>
- Mulholland, M., & O'Connor, U. (2016). Collaborative classroom practice for inclusion: perspectives of classroom teachers and learning support/resource teachers. *International Journal of Inclusive Education*, 20(10), 1070-1083. <https://doi.org/10.1080/13603116.2016.1145266>

Commented [u18]: Avoid thesis references

Commented [u19]: Wrong in writing book type reference

Commented [u20]: Wrong in writing book type reference

- Murawski, W., & Lochner, W. (2017). *Beyond co-teaching basics: A data-driven, no-fail model for continuous improvement*. ASCD.
- Murawski, W., & Spencer, S. (2011). *Collaborate, communicate, and differentiate! How to increase student learning in today's diverse schools?*. Corwin.
- Nwosu, K., Wahl, W., Cassim, H., Okwuduba, E., & Nnaemeka, G. (2020). Teaching children with special needs in Nigerian regular classes: Impact of gender, marital status, experience, and specialty. *International Journal of Learning, Teaching and Educational Research*, 19(12), 86-105. <https://doi.org/10.26803/ijlter.19.12.5>
- Packard, A., Hazelkorn, M., Harris, K., & McLeod, R. (2011). Academic achievement of secondary students with learning disabilities in co-taught and resource rooms. *Journal of Research in Education*, 21(2), 100-117. <https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/EJ1098399.pdf>
- Pancsofar, N., & Petroff, J. (2013). Professional development experiences in co-teaching: Associations with teacher confidence, interests, and attitudes. *Teacher Education and Special Education*, 36(2), 83-96. <https://doi.org/10.1177/0888406412474996>
- Pancsofar, N., & Petroff, J. (2016). Teachers' experiences with co-teaching as a model for inclusive education. *International Journal of Inclusive Education*, 20(10), 1043-1053. <https://doi.org/10.1080/13603116.2016.1145264>
- Pangaro, P. (2017). Questions for conversation theory or conversation theory in one hour. *Kybernetes*, 46(9), 1578-1587. <https://doi.org/10.1108/K-10-2016-0304>
- Randolph, C. (2017). *The academic achievement rate of students with disabilities in a co-teaching setting on end-of-course algebra exams* [PhD thesis, Regent University].
- Scott, C. (2016). *A study of teachers' perceptions of co-teaching relationships* [PhD thesis, Grand Canyon University].
- Shaffer, L., & Brown, T. (2015). Enhancing teacher competency through co-teaching and embedded professional development. *Journal of Education and Training Studies*, 3(3), 117-125. <https://doi.org/10.11114/IETS.V3I3.685>
- Shah, R. (2019). Effective constructivist teaching learning in the classroom. *Shanlax International Journal of Education*, 7(4), 1-13. <https://doi.org/10.34293/education.v7i4.600>
- Shin, M., Lee, H., & McKenna, J. (2016). Special education and general education preservice teachers' co-teaching experiences: A comparative synthesis of qualitative research. *International Journal of Inclusive Education*, 20(1), 91-107. <https://doi.org/10.1080/13603116.2015.1074732>
- Sileo, J. (2011). Co-Teaching: Getting to know your partner. *Teaching Exceptional Children*, 43(5), 32-38. <http://dx.doi.org/10.1177/004005991104300503>
- Simon, D. (2017). *Successful collaboration between general education and special education teachers: A case study* [PhD thesis, North Central University].
- Simonvski, E. (2015). *The co-teaching model and its impact on the academic gains of high school students with disabilities* [PhD thesis, Claremont Graduate University].
- Stein, E. (2016). *Elevating Co-Teaching through UDL*. CAST Professional Publishing.
- Strogilos, V., & Avramidis, E. (2016). Teaching experiences of students with special educational needs in co-taught and non-co-taught classes. *Journal of Research in Special Educational Needs*, 16 (1), 24-33. <http://dx.doi.org/10.1111/1471-3802.12052>
- Strogilos, V., Stefanidis, A., & Tragoulia, E. (2016). Co-teachers' attitudes towards planning and instructional activities for students with disabilities. *European Journal of Special Needs Education*, 31(3), 344-359. <http://dx.doi.org/10.1080/08856257.2016.1141512>

- Wang, S., & Hwang, G. (2012). The role of collective efficacy, Cognitive quality, and task cohesion in computer-supported collaborative learning (CSCL). *Computers & Education*, 58(2), 679-687.
- Weiss, M., Glaser, H., & Lloyd, J. (2020). An exploratory study of an instructional model for co-teaching. *Exceptionality*. <https://doi.org/10.1080/09362835.2020.1727338>
- Wilson, G., & Michaels, C. (2007). General and special education students' perceptions of co-teaching: Implications for secondary-level literacy instruction. *Reading & Writing Quarterly*, 22(3), 205-225. <https://doi.org/10.1080/10573560500455695>

*International Journal of
Learning, Teaching and
Educational Research*

This certificate is awarded to:

Furtasan Ali Yusuf

for reviewing the following paper:

Awareness of Co-Teaching among Teachers of Omani Students with Learning Disabilities



*Prof. Antonio Mauricio Silva Sprock
Chief Editor, IJLTER*



International Journal of Learning,
Teaching and Educational Research
e-ISSN 1694-2116, p-ISSN 1694-2493
email editor@ijlter.org
website [http //www.ijlter.org](http://www.ijlter.org)

July 2022